WikipediA

[Council on African Affairs. (Accessed Aug. 27, 2021). Overview. Wikipedia.]

Council on African Affairs

The **Council on African Affairs** (**CAA**), until 1941 called the **International Committee on African Affairs** (ICAA), was a volunteer organization founded in 1937 in the United States. It emerged as the leading voice of <u>anti-colonialism</u> and <u>Pan-Africanism</u> in the <u>United States</u> and internationally before <u>Cold War anti-communism</u> and <u>liberalism</u> created too much strife among members; the organization split in 1955. The split was also precipitated by co-founder <u>Max Yergan's</u> abandonment of left-wing politics; he advocated colonial rule in Africa.

Contents

Founding members

Goals and message

South Africa Uncensored (1951)

Reaction to United Nations Conference 1945

Cold War

References

External links

Founding members

<u>Paul Robeson</u> served as the CAA's chairman for most of its existence while <u>W. E. B. Du Bois</u> served as vice-chair and head of the Africa Aid Committee. Activist <u>Max Yergan</u>, who taught at the <u>City College of New York</u> (until 1941), was its first Executive Director. <u>Alphaeus Hunton Jr.</u> (1903–1970), an assistant professor in the English and Romance Languages department at <u>Howard University</u>, joined the CAA in 1943 as its Educational Director.

He was appointed as its Executive Director, after Yergan resigned. Hunton was also the editor of the CAA publication, $\underbrace{New\ Africa}_{1950s.}$ He was the primary force behind much of the CAA's activity and vision through the early $\underbrace{1950s.}^{[1][2]}$

Other pioneer members of the ICAA were Raymond Leslie Buell and Ralph J. Bunche. The CAA, from its beginning in 1941, received the support of mainstream activists and liberal intellectuals such as anthropologist Franz Boas, historian E. Franklin Frazier, record producer John H. Hammond, Mary McLeod Bethune (from the National Youth Administration) and Rayford Logan. [1][3]

The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) surveilled CAA's founding members as early as 1942. [4]

The CAA's main donor was Frederick Vanderbilt Field. [5]

Goals and message

The Council on African Affairs articulated and promoted a fundamental connection between the struggle of African Americans and the destiny of colonized peoples in Africa, Asia and elsewhere in the world. Among a host of other campaigns, it lobbied the federal government and the United Nations and lent material support on behalf of Indian independence, striking trade unionists in Nigeria, and African famine relief. It publicized the connections between these campaigns and its larger critique of colonialism and capitalism via its monthly bulletin New Africa. The CAA's most significant work took place in relation to South Africa. It supported striking black miners and helped direct worldwide attention to the African National Congress's struggle against the Union of South Africa government and its policy of imposing racial apartheid.

South Africa Uncensored (1951)

In 1951, the Council produced a half-hour agitprop documentary film about apartheid in South Africa, narrated by Paul Robeson and edited by Hortense Beveridge. The only-known copy of the film, *South Africa Uncensored*, is part of the Pearl Bowser Collection (2012.79.1.5.1a) was preserved by the Smithsonian's National Museum of African American History and Culture (available for stream via museum website).

Reaction to United Nations Conference 1945

Members of the CAA were hopeful that following <u>World War II</u>, when Western powers adopted new resolutions on the issue of <u>colonialism</u>, that they would encourage <u>Third World</u> independence under the trusteeship of the United Nations. To the CAA's dismay, the <u>United States</u> introduced a series of proposals at the April–May 1945 conference that set no clear <u>limits</u> on the length of <u>colonialist</u> occupation and no motions toward allowing territorial possessions to move toward self-government.

Cold War

The Council on African Affairs advocated an internationalization of domestic civil rights, support for African liberation groups, and a non-aligned stance on the part of developing nations toward the Cold War superpowers. Combined with many CAA leaders' past and current associations with the Communist Party USA, this position became politically untenable by the early 1950s. The House Unamerican Activities Committee (HUAC) put great pressure on communist-affiliated organizations and activists. Liberal supporters abandoned the CAA and the federal government cracked down on its operations. In 1953, the CAA was charged with subversion under the McCarran Act. Its principal leaders, including Robeson, Du Bois, and Hunton, were subjected to harassment, indictments, and in the case of Hunton, six months' imprisonment.

Under the weight of internal disputes, government repression, and financial hardships, the Council on African Affairs disbanded in 1955. The United States government considered advocacy for the liberation of colonialist Africa as a "Communist cause" and therefore contrary to national interests during the Cold War. [9]

Following <u>Joseph Stalin</u>'s excesses in the Soviet Union of murdering and repressing millions, and other problems in the Communist world, Max Yergan had become disillusioned with Communism and spoke out against it. In 1952, he spoke against Communism on a visit to South Africa. In 1964, he praised aspects of the South African government's "separate development" plan under <u>apartheid</u>. In the last decade of life, he co-chaired the conservative American-African Affairs Association. [10]

References

- 1. Duberman, Martin, "The Apex of Fame", Paul Robeson, 1989, pp. 284–285.
- 2. Johanna Selles, "The Hunton Family: A Narrative of Faith through Generations" (http://old.religiou seducation.net/member/06 rea papers/Selles Johanna.pdf) (pdf), Religious Education.
- 3. Anthony, David Henry: *Max Yergan: Race Man, Internationalist, Cold Warrior*, NYU Press, 2006, p. 212.
- 4. Nixon, Ron (2016). South Africa's Global Propaganda War. London, U.K.: Pluto Press. p. 8. ISBN 9780745399140. OCLC 959031269 (https://www.worldcat.org/oclc/959031269).
- 5. Nixon, Ron (2016). South Africa's Global Propaganda War. London, U.K.: Pluto Press. p. 10. ISBN 9780745399140. OCLC 959031269 (https://www.worldcat.org/oclc/959031269).
- Forsberg, Walter (2019). Field, Allyson Nadia; Gordon, Marsha (eds.). "Red Star/Black Star: The Early Career of Film Editor Hortense "Tee" Beveridge, 1948-1968". Screening Race in American Nontheatrical Film. Durham, North Carolina: Duke University Press. pp. 119–121. ISBN 9781478004769.
- 7. "South Africa Uncensored" (https://nmaahc.si.edu/object/nmaahc_2012.79.1.5.1a#). Smithsonian National Museum of African American History & Culture. Retrieved 25 October 2020.
- 8. Duberman, Martin, "Postwar Politics", Paul Robeson, 1989, pp. 296–297.
- 9. Robeson, Susan, "The Pinnacle of Fame and Fortune", *A Pictorial Biography of Paul Robeson:* The Whole World in His Hands, 1981, p. 118.
- 10. "Max Yergan" (http://www.sahistory.org.za/people/max-yergan-0), South African History Online.

External links

 Watch (https://nmaahc.si.edu/object/nmaahc_2012.79.1.5.1a) the Council's documentary film South Africa Uncensored (1951) via NMAAHC (https://nmaahc.si.edu/object/nmaahc_2012.79.1. 5.1a).

Retrieved from "https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Council on African Affairs&oldid=1001386966"

This page was last edited on 19 January 2021, at 13:19 (UTC).

Text is available under the Creative Commons Attribution-ShareAlike License; additional terms may apply. By using this site, you agree to the Terms of Use and Privacy Policy. Wikipedia® is a registered trademark of the Wikimedia Foundation, Inc., a non-profit organization.



[Frederick Vanderbilt Field. (Accessed Aug. 27, 2021). Biography. Wikipedia.]

Frederick Vanderbilt Field

Frederick Vanderbilt Field (April 13, 1905 – February 1, 2000) was an American leftist political activist, political writer and a great-great-grandson of railroad tycoon Cornelius "Commodore" Vanderbilt, disinherited by his wealthy relatives for his radical political views. Field became a specialist on Asia and was a prime staff member and supporter of the Institute of Pacific Relations. He also supported Henry Wallace's Progressive Party and so many openly Communist organizations that he was accused of being a member of the Communist Party. [1] He was a top target of the American government during the peak of 1950s McCarthyism. Field denied ever having been a party member but admitted in his memoirs, "I suppose I was what the Party called a 'member at large." [2][1]

Contents

Early years

Institute of Pacific Relations and radical politics

American Peace Mobilization

Anti-colonialism and Pan-Africanism

Civil rights activities

Tydings Committee

Mexican exile

Personal life and death

Works

Footnotes

Further reading

External links

Frederick Vanderbilt Field		
Born	April 13, 1905	
Died	February 1, 2000 (aged 94) Minneapolis, Minnesota	
Nationality	American	
Education	Hotchkiss School (1923) ^[1] Harvard University (1927) London School of Economics	
Spouse(s)	Elizabeth Brown (1st), Edith Chamberlain Hunter (2nd), Anita Cohen Boyer (3rd), Nieves Orozco (4th)	
Parent(s)	William Osgood Field Lila Vanderbilt Sloane	
Relatives	Cornelius Vanderbilt (great-great- grandfather) Samuel Osgood (ancestor) Cyrus Field (ancestor)	

Early years

Field was born on April 13, 1905, a scion of the wealthy Vanderbilt family and a descendant of Corneilus Vanderbilt. A 1923 graduate of the private Hotchkiss School, Field went on to attend Harvard University, where he participated in undergraduate life as chief editor of *The Harvard Crimson* and a member of the Hasty Pudding Club. Graduating in 1927, Field spent a year at the London School of Economics, where he was exposed to the ideas of Harold Laski, the Fabian socialist political theorist, economist, and writer. First coming into politics as a supporter of the Democratic Party after returning to the United States, he was disillusioned by the Democrats' unwillingness to

take a more uncompromising position toward social reform and endorsed Norman Thomas, the Socialist presidential candidate in 1928 and became a member of the Socialist Party. Having attracted significant attention as an unlikely endorsement for Norman Thomas, Field was cut off without a penny by Frederick William Vanderbilt, his great-uncle, from whom he had been promised an estimated fortune of more than \$70 million. [1]

Institute of Pacific Relations and radical politics

Upon Field's return from England in 1928, Edward Clark Carter of the Institute of Pacific Relations (IPR) introduced him to Y.C. James Yen, who was then in the United States to raise money for his Chinese Mass Education Movement. After touring the country as Yen's personal assistant, Field joined the IPR, a group that brought together government and non-governmental elites to study problems of the Pacific rim nations, as an assistant to Carter. Field "took no pay; he was, in fact, one of the institute's most generous contributors." He published several reference works on the Asian economy and organized conferences and publications.

As he grew older, his politics became more radical. He described the IPR as "a bourgeois research-educational organization" funded by the Rockefeller and Carnegie foundations and some of the biggest corporations in the US, which he claimed subsidized his publication of proposals "as anticapitalistic as the articles he wrote for <u>The New Masses</u> and <u>The Daily Worker</u>." New Masses was identified by one scholar as the "semi-official spokesman of Communist letters" He was also Executive Vice-President of the Council for Pan American Democracy, which <u>John Dewey's</u> Committee for Cultural Freedom alleged in 1940 was under "outright communist control" and Provisional secretary of the Board of Directors for the <u>Jefferson School of Social Science</u>, associated with the Communist Party.

He wrote a memo cautioning <u>Owen Lattimore</u>, editor of the IPR quarterly <u>Pacific Affairs</u>, with regard to a certain article that "the <u>analysis</u> is a straight <u>Marxist</u> one and... should not be altered." He donated money and time to Communist causes in the 1930s, 1940s and 1950s, 195 and during the war, he generously donated money to organizations close to the Soviet Union. 195

In his autobiography, Field confesses that during this period he "uncritically accepted" Soviet accounts of their political purges and that was "taken in." "Stalin was infallible," he recalled. "[A]ll my Communist surroundings told me so. So was [American Communist Party Secretary Earl] Browder, although on a lower level of sanctity, and so were the other CP [Communist Party] leaders."

At a time when other erstwhile loyal friends of the Soviet Union were becoming disillusioned by Stalin's <u>Great Purge</u>, Field defended the <u>Moscow Trials</u> "because Comrade Stalin says so, we have to believe the trials are just." [2]

Since the IPR aimed to be nonpartisan and, in theory, still attempted to include even the Japanese point of view, he collaborated with his friend <u>Philip Jaffe</u> to set up the journal <u>Amerasia</u> in 1937 as a vehicle for criticism of Japanese attacks in China. Jaffe later pleaded guilty to "conspiracy to embezzle, steal and purloin" government property after <u>Office of Strategic Services</u> and FBI investigators found hundreds of government documents, many labeled "secret," "top secret," or "confidential," in the magazine's offices. [10]

In 1941, he left his position at the IPR but served as a trustee until 1947. Field attended the 1945 United Nations founding conference in San Francisco as an IPR representative, and also as a writer for the *Daily Worker*. 12]

American Peace Mobilization

In 1940, Field became executive secretary of the American Peace Mobilization (APM), a position for which he had been recruited by <u>Earl Browder</u> himself. "Some time before the APM was formally organized," wrote Field, "Earl Browder asked me if I would accept the executive secretaryship if it were offered me." At APM, Field emerged as a committed pacifist, demanding that the United States stay out of the war in Europe, at least while the <u>Hitler-Stalin pact</u> lasted. Is reasoning, as he would explain in his autobiography, was that "the European war in those early stages was one between rival imperialists, the British Empire and the Nazi Reich." By summer of the following year, however, Field came to a complete turnaround: on June 20, 1941, in his capacity as executive secretary, he suddenly called off the organization's "peace picketing" of the White House himself to demand immediate war on Germany placed picketing of the White House in the Soviet Union.

According to the McCarran Committee's *IPR Report*, Lattimore, along with President Franklin D. Roosevelt's Administrative Assistant Lauchlin Currie (identified in the Venona decrypts as the Soviets' White House source codenamed "Page"), tried in 1942 to get Field a commission in military intelligence, but, unlike Duncan Lee (Venona code name "Koch"), Maurice Halperin ("Hare"), Julius Joseph ("Cautious"), Carl Marzani, Franz Neumann ("Ruff"), Helen Tenney ("Muse"), and Donald Wheeler ("Izra"), all of whom got into the OSS, Field was rejected as a security risk.

In 1944, dissident IPR member Alfred Kohlberg submitted to IPR Secretary General Edward C. Carter an 88-page analysis alleging that the institute had been infiltrated by pro-Communist elements. Among other things, Kohlberg alleged that Field was a member of the National Committee of the Communist Party. [20] In 1945, former Soviet spy Elizabeth Bentley told FBI investigators that she had attended a conference in Field's home earlier that year. [21] Also present, she alleged, were Browder, John Hazard Reynolds, head of the United States Service and Shipping Corporation (a Comintern front organization for Soviet espionage activities) [22] and "Ray" Elson (Identified in the "Gorsky memo" under the cover name "Irma") [23]

In 1945 Field was one of the founding members of the <u>Committee for a Democratic Far Eastern</u> <u>Policy</u>, which tried to influence US policy to stop supporting the <u>Kuomintang</u> government in China, and after 1949 to recognize the People's Republic of China. [24]

On April 22, 1948, <u>Louis Budenz</u>, former managing editor of the *Daily Worker*, advised FBI investigators, "Field is a Communist Party member." In 1949, Field identified himself in *Political Affairs* as an "American Communist."

Anti-colonialism and Pan-Africanism

Vanderbilt Field was the main donor to the <u>Council on African Affairs</u>, an <u>anti-colonialist</u> and <u>Pan-</u>African organization. [27]

Civil rights activities

Field took an active role in the operation of the <u>Civil Rights Congress</u>, a leftist group of civil rights advocates formed from the merger of the <u>International Labor Defense</u> (ILD), the <u>National Negro Congress</u>, and the <u>National Federation for Constitutional Liberties</u> in <u>Detroit</u> in 1946. The organization concentrated on legal action and political protest, notably publicizing the 1955 lynching

of 14-year-old boy Emmett Till and publishing the 1951 document We Charge Genocide. It also helped to pioneer many of the tactics that would be employed by later civil rights workers. [1][28] Field simultaneously acted as both secretary and trustee of the Civil Rights Congress bail fund. [1]

Tydings Committee

In 1950, Budenz testified before the <u>Tydings Committee</u> to personal knowledge that Field was a Soviet espionage agent. [29] Questioned, Field refused to answer on grounds of potential self-incrimination. [30] The following year, former Soviet spy <u>Whittaker Chambers</u> testified before the <u>McCarran Committee</u> that <u>NKVD</u> "handler" <u>J. Peters</u> told him, in 1937, that Field was a member of the Communist underground. [31] Herbert Romerstein, former head of the office to Counter Soviet Disinformation at the <u>United States Information Agency</u>, and the late <u>Eric Breindel</u> placed Field in the GRU *apparat*, alleging that he "was an agent of Soviet military intelligence." [32]

Yet, writers <u>Kai Bird</u> and <u>Svetlana Chervonnaya</u>, examining the archives in an article of <u>The American</u> <u>Scholar</u>, disagree:

Documents show that he was in contact with various Soviet representatives in the United States beginning in early 1935. Some of these interactions may be described as 'active measures' on behalf of the Soviet Union. Still, what we know does not prove that Field was a full-blown Soviet agent. [33]

As secretary of the Civil Rights Congress bail fund, Field refused to reveal who had put up bond for eight Communist Party officials, who had jumped bail and disappeared after being convicted by the Truman administration Department of Justice for violations of the Smith Act. Convicted of contempt of court since he would not provide the names of any of his Communist friends, Field served two months of a 90-day sentence in federal prison at Ashland, Kentucky, in 1951. [1]

Mexican exile

Field at one point moved with his third wife to Mexico in a "self-imposed exile", but he kept up many of his associations. A 1962 visit by Marilyn Monroe was monitored by the FBI out of concern over the actress's connections to Communism, and a "mutual infatuation" between her and Field concerned both "some in her inner circle, including her therapist", according to investigators' files. There was "dismay among her entourage and also among the (American Communist Group in Mexico)." Those file notations were kept redacted until a FOIA request in 2012. [34]

Personal life and death

Field married four times. His first wife was a Elizabeth ("Betty") G. Brown^[35] of Duluth, Minnesota, who was a socialist. His second wife, Edith Chamberlain Hunter, supported the Council on African Affairs headed by Max Yergan. His third wife was Anita Cohen Boyer, ex-wife of Raymond Boyer, convicted in a Canadian spy case. His fourth wife was Nieves Orozco, a former model of Diego Rivera. [2][1][37]

Field died age 94 on February 1, 2000, at the Walker Methodist Health Center in Minneapolis, where he had been living since his return from Mexico in 1983. [1]

Works

In his 1983 memoir, Field did not hesitate to use highly biased language against his accusers. He accused <u>Louis F. Budenz</u> of seeking to injure him. He called <u>Whittaker Chambers</u> "a neurotic psychopath." He devoted a whole chapter to "The Lattimore Case," which involved him. He also acknowledged IPR's Edward Clark Carter, who "gave me every opportunity to develop whatever administrative and research abilities I might have." [2]

- American Participation in the China Consortiums (Pub. for the American Council, Institute of Pacific Relations by the University of Chicago Press, 1931)
- Economic Handbook of the Pacific Area (Doubleday, 1934)
- China's Capacity for Resistance (American Council, Institute of Pacific Relations, 1937)
- China's Greatest Crisis (New Century Publishers, 1945)
- Thoughts on the Meaning and Use of Pre-Hispanic Mexican Sellos (Dumbarton Oaks, Trustees for Harvard University, 1967)
- Field, Frederick V. (1983). From Right to Left (https://books.google.com/books?id=g9cPAQAAMA AJ). Brooklyn: Lawrence Hill. p. 321. ISBN 9780882081625. Retrieved 29 August 2020.

Footnotes

- Nemy, Enid (February 7, 2000). "Frederick Vanderbilt Field, Wealthy Leftist, Dies at 94" (https://www.nytimes.com/2000/02/07/us/frederick-vanderbilt-field-wealthy-leftist-dies-at-94.html). New York Times. Retrieved 2008-05-11. "Frederick Vanderbilt Field, who supported Communist causes in the 1930s, 1940s and 1950s and was once described as the Reds' pet blueblood, died Feb. 1 at the Walker Methodist Health Center in Minneapolis."
- 2. Field, Frederick V. (1983). From Right to Left (https://books.google.com/books?id=g9cPAQAAMA AJ). Brooklyn: Lawrence Hill. pp. 22 (1st wife Elizabeth), 82–84 (Carter), 85 (1st wife "Betty"), 95 (1st wife Elizabeth), 102 (1st wife "Betty"), 139 (1st wife "Betty" 2nd wife Edith), 169 (membership), 172–173 (Purge), 186 (offer), 191 (Empire, Reich), 210 (2nd wife Edith), 211 (3rd wife Anita), 214 (Budenz injure), 216 (Budenz), 217 (Chambers), 258–259 (3rd wife Anita), 266 (Budenz), 267 (Chambers psychopath), 269 (Chambers), 279 (3rd wife Nieves), 304 (3rd wife Nieves). ISBN 9780882081625. Retrieved 29 August 2020.
- 3. "Life of an Angel" (https://web.archive.org/web/20080103153216/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,811650,00.html). Time. January 9, 1950. Archived from the original (http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,811650,00.html) on January 3, 2008. Retrieved 2008-05-11. "Frederick Vanderbilt Field was news the day he was born, Apr. 15, 1905. He was a great-great grandson of Railroad Builder Cornelius Vanderbilt, marked by destiny and carefully drawn wills to be a man of wealth and solid respectability."
- 4. Ibid. (https://query.nytimes.com/gst/fullpage.html?res=9903E0DB173BF935A25753C1A96594826 0)*
- James Burkhart Gilbert, Writers and Partisans: A History of Literary Radicalism in America (https://books.google.com/books?id=xrSLRSqKgxUC&pg=PA88&sig=ibruDZ1tFl85qBg4QQK6abd8T90#PPA106,M1) (New York: Columbia University Press, 1992) ISBN 0-231-08254-1, p. 106
- 6. Eugene Lyons, *The Red Decade: The Stalinist Penetration of America* (Indianapolis: The Bobbs Merill Company, 1941), p. 376
- 7. Guide to the Jefferson School of Social Science (http://dlib.nyu.edu/eadapp/transform?source=tamwag/jefferson.xml&style=tamwag/tamwag.xsl&part=body)
- 8. "Absent-Minded Professor? (https://web.archive.org/web/20071219164351/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,822192-1,00.html)" *Time*, March 10, 1952

- 9. Bird and Chervonnaya, Op. cit. (http://www.theamericanscholar.org/su07/ales-bird.html) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20071002134104/http://www.theamericanscholar.org/su07/ales-bird.html) 2007-10-02 at the Wayback Machine
- Harvey Klehr and Ronald Radosh, The Amerasia Spy Case: Prelude to McCarthyism (Chapel Hill: The University of North Carolina Press, 1996) ISBN 0-8078-2245-0, p. 38–39, 131.
- 11. Subcommittee to Investigate the Administration of the Internal Security Act and Other Security Laws, Senate Committee on the Judiciary, *Interlocking Subversion in Government Departments*, (Washington: U S Government Printing Office, 1954), pp. 8–10
- 12. FBI Report: Southern California Division, American Council, Institute of Pacific Relations, June 13, 1947, p. 3 (http://education-research.org/PDFs/splitfiles/splitprocessed/IPR03_Folder/IPR03_pag e4.pdf) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20110726014857/http://education-research.org/PDF s/splitfiles/splitprocessed/IPR03_Folder/IPR03_page4.pdf) July 26, 2011, at the Wayback Machine (FBI file: Institute of Pacific Relations, Section 3, PDF p. 4)
- 13. "Picketers Picketed," *Time*, June 2, 1941 (https://web.archive.org/web/20081206024705/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,790078,00.html)
- 14. "White House Pickets Stop At 1,029 Hours," Washington Post, June 22, 1941
- 15. "Purely for Peace," *Time*, July 14, 1941 (https://web.archive.org/web/20070930064751/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,849366,00.html)
- 16. Robert J. Hanyok, "Eavesdropping on Hell: Historical Guide to Western Communications Intelligence and the Holocaust, 1939–1945" (https://www.nsa.gov/about/cryptologic-heritage/historical-figures-publications/publications/wwii/assets/files/eavesdropping.pdf) (Washington, DC: Center for Cryptologic History, National Security Agency, 2005, 2nd Ed.), p. 119 (PDF page 124)
- M. Stanton Evans, "McCarthyism: Waging the Cold War in America (http://www.humanevents.com/article.php?id=455)
 Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20071012170301/http://www.humanevents.com/article.php?id=455)
 2007-10-12 at the Wayback Machine," Human Events, May 30, 1997
- 18. Lee, Halperin and Joseph are identified in Venona decrypt 880 KGB New York to Moscow, June 8, 1943, p. 1 (http://www.nsa.gov/venona/releases/08_Jun_1943_m7_p1.gif) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20070705100533/http://www.nsa.gov/venona/releases/08_Jun_1943_m7_p1.gif) July 5, 2007, at the Wayback Machine
- "Alexander Vassiliev's Own Translation of his Notes on Anatoly Gorsky's December 1948 Memo on Compromised American Sources and Networks (http://www.johnearlhaynes.org/page53.html) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20070927223238/http://www.johnearlhaynes.org/page53.html) 2007-09-27 at the Wayback Machine," October 2005
- 20. FBI Report: Institute of Pacific Relations, Internal Security–C, July 22, 1949, p. 9 (IPR file, Section 4 (http://Ultra-Secret.info/PDFs/IPR04.pdf), PDF p. 11)
- 21. FBI Report: <u>Underground Soviet Espionage Organization (NKVD) in Agencies of the United States Government (http://Ultra-Secret.info/PDFs/splitfiles/splitprocessed/Silvermaster082_Folder/Silvermaster082_page242.pdf)</u>, October 21, 1946 (Silvermaster file, Vol. 82), p. 221
- 22. Lauren Kessler, Clever Girl: Elizabeth Bentley, the Spy Who Ushered in the McCarthy Era (New York: HarperCollins, 2003) ISBN 0-06-095973-8, p. 77
- 23. Alexander Vassiliev, *Op. cit.* (http://www.johnearlhaynes.org/page53.html) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20070927223238/http://www.johnearlhaynes.org/page53.html) 2007-09-27 at the Wayback Machine
- 24. Garner, Karen (2009-06-01), *Precious Fire: Maud Russell and the Chinese Revolution* (https://books.google.com/books?id=VW67uwsVuh8C&pg=PA207), Univ of Massachusetts Press, <u>ISBN</u> 978-1-55849-754-2, retrieved 2016-03-14
- 25. FBI Report: Institute of Pacific Relations, Internal Security–C, p.5 (FBI file: Institute of Pacific Relations, Section 4 (http://Ultra-Secret.info/PDFs/IPR04.pdf), PDF p. 7)

- 26. Edward M. Collins, *Myth, Manifesto, Meltdown: Communist Strategy, 1848–1991 (https://books.google.com/books?id=YRa3Y2m_wrwC&pg=PA55&dq=joseph+barnes+ipr&sig=rhLcLDGQC4EFF1N3AArJQvvXRs4#PPA55,M1)* (Westport, Connecticut: Praeger/Greenwood, 1998), p. 55 (https://books.google.com/books?id=YRa3Y2m_wrwC&pg=PA55&dq=joseph+barnes+ipr&sig=rhLcLDGQC4EFF1N3AArJQvvXRs4#PPA55,M1) ISBN 0-275-95938-4
- 27. Nixon, Ron (2016). South Africa's Global Propaganda War. London, U.K.: Pluto Press. p. 10. ISBN 9780745399140. OCLC 959031269 (https://www.worldcat.org/oclc/959031269).
- 28. Salter, Daren. "Civil Rights Congress (1946–1956)". *African American History*. Quintard Taylor, Editor. *BlackPast.org: Remembered & Reclaimed*. http://www.blackpast.org/?q=aah/civil-rights-congress-1946-1956
- 29. "Of Cells & Onionskins (https://web.archive.org/web/20081206024711/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,812297,00.html)," *Time*, May 1, 1950
- 30. "In the Dark (https://web.archive.org/web/20081206024716/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,812381,00.html)," *Time* May 8, 1950
- 31. Romerstein and Breindel, *Op. cit.* (https://books.google.com/books?id=mVpWH51F7toC&pg=PP1 &dq=the+venona+secrets&sig=YjqLS-EKVnkl7tqP2RGUa0fKiUk#PPA434,M1), p. 433
- 32. Ibid. (https://books.google.com/books?id=mVpWH51F7toC&pg=PP1&dq=the+venona+secrets&sig=YjqLS-EKVnkl7tqP2RGUa0fKiUk#PPA57,M1), p. 57
- Bird, Kai, and Svetlana Chervonnaya. "The Mystery of Ales". The American Scholar (Summer 2007). Internet Archive: Wayback Machine. Retrieved 3 April 2009. https://web.archive.org/web/20071002134104/http://www.theamericanscholar.org/su07/alesbird.html
- 34. Anthony McCartney (2012-12-28). <u>"FBI removes many redactions in Marilyn Monroe file" (https://news.yahoo.com/fbi-removes-many-redactions-marilyn-monroe-file-131729814.html)</u>. Associated Press. Retrieved 2012-12-28.
- 35. "F. Vanderbilt to Wed Miss Brown; Bride-to-Be a Duluth Girl" (https://www.nytimes.com/1929/03/1 9/archives/f-vanderbilt-field-to-wed-miss-brown-bridetobe-a-duluth-girllicense.html). New York Times. 19 March 1929. p. S42. Retrieved 29 August 2020.
- 36. "Mrs. Edith C. Hunter Becomes Bride Here; California Woman Is Married to Frederick Vanderbilt Field in Municipal Building" (https://www.nytimes.com/1937/02/19/archives/mrs-edith-c-hunter-becomes-bride-here-california-woman-is-married.html). New York Times. 19 February 1939. p. 16. Retrieved 29 August 2020.
- 37. Thompson, Craig (9 September 1950). "American Millionaire Communist" (https://www.saturdayeveningpost.com/flipbooks/issues/19500909/). Saturday Evening Post. Curtis Publishing: 28, 159–162, 161 (2nd wife), 162 (1st, 3rd wives). Retrieved 29 August 2020.

Further reading

- Frederick Vanderbilt Field, From Right to Left: An Autobiography (Westport, Conn.: L. Hill, 1983).
 vii, 321p.
- FBI Silvermaster File
- Whittaker Chambers, Witness (New York: Random House, 1952), 382

External links

Vassiliev, Alexander (2003), <u>Alexander Vassiliev's Notes on Anatoly Gorsky's December 1948</u>
 Memo on Compromised American Sources and Networks (http://www.wilsoncenter.org/event/alex
 ander-vassilievs-notebooks-and-the-documentation-soviet-intelligence-operations-the-unit-0),
 retrieved 2012-04-21

Retrieved from "https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Frederick Vanderbilt Field&oldid=1034652144"

This page was last edited on 21 July 2021, at 03:27 (UTC).

Text is available under the Creative Commons Attribution-ShareAlike License; additional terms may apply. By using this site, you agree to the Terms of Use and Privacy Policy. Wikipedia® is a registered trademark of the Wikimedia Foundation, Inc., a non-profit organization.

WikipediA

[Political views of Paul Robeson. (Accessed Aug. 27, 2021). Overview Wikipedia.]

Political views of Paul Robeson

Entertainer and activist <u>Paul Robeson</u>'s political philosophies and outspoken views about domestic and international Communist countries and movements were the subject of great concern to the western mass media and the United States Government, during the <u>Cold War</u>. His views also caused controversy within the ranks of black organizations and the entertainment industry.

Robeson was never officially identified as a member of the <u>Communist Party USA</u> (CPUSA), domestically or internationally. Robeson's beliefs in socialism, his ties to the CPUSA and leftist trade unions, and his experiences in the USSR continue to cause controversy among historians and scholars as well as fans and journalists.

Contents

First visit to the Soviet Union (1934)

Soviet constitution and anti-racist climate

Robeson's early views on the USSR and communism is greate for the peoples

Reactions to Molotov–Ribbentrop Pact

Tenney Committee statement

Mundt-Nixon Bill and Smith Act

Itzik Feffer meeting and concert in Tchaikovsky Hall (June 1949)

Accounts of the meeting

Robeson's speaks publicly of Feffer

Silence on Stalin

Jackie Robinson's testimony to HUAC (April 1949)

Views on Stalin

Stalin Peace Prize and Stalin eulogy (1952–1953)

Robeson and House Un-American Activities Committee (1956)

Possible challenge to Soviet policies

Later views of communism (1960s)

References

First visit to the Soviet Union (1934)

Robeson journeyed to the Soviet Union in December 1934, via Germany, having been given an official invitation. While there, Robeson was welcomed by playwrights, artists and filmmakers, among them Sergei Eisenstein who became a close friend. Robeson also met with African Americans who had migrated to the USSR including his two brothers-in-law. Robeson was accompanied by his wife, Eslanda Goode Robeson and his biographer and friend, Marie Seton. He and his wife Eslanda were nearly attacked by Nazi Sturmabteilung at the stopover in Berlin.

Soviet constitution and anti-racist climate

Robeson recounted how Russian children and strangers approached him in the streets and offered to shake his hand. Robeson quickly became captivated with the Soviet experiment and its leadership, also declaring that African-American <u>spiritual music</u> resonated to <u>Russian</u> folk traditions. He told the press:

Here, I am not a Negro but a human being for the first time in my life ... I walk in full human dignity.

Robeson also took great interest in Article 123 of the <u>Soviet Constitution</u> which unlike the laws of the US at the time, effectively barred racial discrimination.

During this time Robeson also commented about the recent execution after <u>court-martial</u> trial of people described by *The Daily Worker* as "counter-revolutionary terrorists":

From what I have already seen of the workings of the Soviet government, I can only say that anybody who lifts his hand against it ought to be shot! [4]

Robeson's early views on the USSR and communism is greate for the peoples

Through his writings and speeches during the mid-to-late 1930s, Robeson would go on to champion the cultural and political revolutions of the Soviet Union especially, as Robeson put it, "its national minority policy as it operates among the peoples of Central Asia." Robeson also advocated the similarities he found between blacks all over the world and the Russian peoples, urging African Americans to look towards the Soviet Union for inspiration in gaining full citizenship within the United States. Robeson also hoped that African countries would follow the example of the USSR and embrace socialism. Robeson studied Russian language and Russian history intensely during the interwar period. [6]

Paul Robeson's laudatory remarks for the socialist revolutions and <u>decolonization of Africa</u> and <u>Asia</u> were not considered controversial during this pre-<u>Cold War</u> era partially because Robeson himself publicly stated that his interest in the Soviet Union was "non-political" and because the USSR was not yet considered an enemy of the US. Robeson would eventually have his son educated in <u>Moscow</u>, widely announcing to the press that he did not want his son to face the "same discrimination that he had faced growing up in the United States."

[7]

Reactions to Molotov-Ribbentrop Pact

When Robeson was given the news of Stalin's 1939 non aggression pact with Hitler, also known as the Molotov–Ribbentrop Pact, he saw the agreement as having been forced on the Soviets by the unwillingness of the military forces of Great Britain and France "to collaborate with the Soviet Union in a real policy of collective security", personally writing in his journal that an Anglo-Russian pact "would have stopped Nazi aggression" and thus leaving the USSR with no alternative choices in shoring up its borders. [8]

Tenney Committee statement

In 1946, Robeson was questioned by the Fact-Finding Committee on Un-American Activities in California, informally known as the Tenney Committee. When he was asked whether he was a member of the Communist Party, Robeson replied that he might as well have been asked whether he was a registered Democrat or Republican—in the United States the Communist Party was equally legal. But, he added, he was not a Communist. [9][10] There is no clear evidence that Robeson ever was a member of the Communist Party. According to records released under the Freedom of Information Act, the FBI believed that Robeson might have joined the Party under the name "John Thomas" but "his Communist Party membership book number is not known". Robeson's biographer, Martin Duberman, concludes that "he was never a member of CPUSA, never a functionary, never a participant in its daily bureaucratic operations". [11] Paul Robeson, Jr. has also stated on numerous times that his father was never a member of the CPUSA.

Mundt-Nixon Bill and Smith Act

Robeson opposed anti-communist legislation. In 1948, he opposed a bill calling for registration of Communist Party members and appeared before the Senate Judiciary Committee. Questioned about his affiliation with the Communist Party, he refused to answer, stating "Some of the most brilliant and distinguished Americans are about to go to jail for the failure to answer that question, and I am going to join them, if necessary."

[12] (The bill was ultimately defeated in the Senate.) In 1949, he spoke in favor of the liberty of twelve Communists (including his long-time friend Benjamin Davis, Jr.) convicted under the Smith Act, which criminalized various left- and right-wing activities as seditious.

[13]

Itzik Feffer meeting and concert in Tchaikovsky Hall (June 1949)

In June 1949, during the 150th anniversary celebration of the birth of Alexander Pushkin, Robeson visited the Soviet Union on a major tour including a concert at Tchaikovsky Hall. Concerned about the welfare of Jewish artists, Robeson insisted to Soviet officials that he meet with Itzik Feffer a few days earlier. Robeson had first met Feffer on July 8, 1943, at the largest pro-Soviet rally ever held in the United States, an event organized by the Jewish Anti-Fascist Committee and chaired by Albert Einstein. Robeson then also got to know Solomon Mikhoels, the popular actor and director of the Moscow State Jewish Theater. Mikhoels also headed the Jewish Anti-Fascist Committee in the Soviet Union with Feffer as his second. After the rally, Robeson and his wife Essie had entertained Feffer and Mikhoels.

According to an account by <u>Paul Robeson Jr</u> told to Robeson biographer <u>Martin Duberman</u>, in the 1980s, Robeson was disturbed as to why he could not find his many Jewish friends when he returned to the U.S.S.R. in June 1949. After several inquires, Feffer was brought to Robeson's hotel room by the State Police. He and Feffer were forced to communicate through hand gestures and notes because the room was bugged. Feffer indicated that Mikhoels had been murdered in 1948 by the secret police and intimated that he also was going to be killed. Feffer in fact was executed along with 14 other Jewish intellectuals three years later. After the talk with Feffer Robeson would ask his friend Pete Blackman to "stick around" him during their stay in Moscow, he would also caution Blackman to "watch what he said" around party officials.

Accounts of the meeting

There were no eyewitnesses who went on record, so the meeting of Paul Robeson and Itzik Feffer in Moscow has been given several varying interpretations. In recent years, Paul Robeson, Jr. has been quoted as saying that his father "tried to contact Soviet officials to see if anything could be done to release Feffer and other Jewish intellectuals." This conflicts somewhat with his first account to Martin Duberman, which stated that his father did not act to speak out on Feffer's behalf to Soviet officials. Solomon Mikhoels' daughter published an account that is nearly identical to that of Paul Robeson Jr., with Robeson specifically requesting to see Feffer except that places the meeting in 1951 which would not have been possible, given that Robeson was without his passport. A second and more angry account by composer Dimitri Shostakovich denounces Robeson for "staying silent", claiming the meeting was in a restaurant with Feffer accompanied by police agents. In The Long Journey by Slavic anthropologist Esther Markish, the author writes that Feffer, following orders from the Soviet secret police, carefully said nothing to Robeson about the purges.

Robeson's speaks publicly of Feffer

Robeson spoke during his concert in Tchaikovsky Hall^[16] on June 14, about his close friendship with Feffer and the recently deceased actor Solomon Mikhoels prior to singing the <u>Vilna Partisan</u> song "Zog Nit Keynmol" in both Russian and Yiddish. The concert was being broadcast across the entire Soviet Union. [21][22] Historian and Robeson biographer Martin Duberman writes:

Asking the audience for silence he announced that there would be only one encore for that evening. He then spoke of his deep cultural ties between the Jewish peoples of the Soviet Union and the United States, and of how that tradition was being continued by the present generation of Russian-Jewish writers and actors. He then referred to his own friendship with Mikhoels and Feffer, and spoke of his great joy in having just come from meeting with Fefffer again. Robeson then sang in Yiddish, to a hushed hall, "Zog Nit Keynmol," the Warsaw Ghetto resistance song, first reciting the words in Russian:

Never say that you have reached the very end When leaden skies a bitter future may portend; For sure the hour for which we yearn will yet arrive And our marching steps will thunder: 'we survive'.

After a moment's silence, the stunned audience, Great Russians and Jews alike responded with a burst of emotion, people with tears in their eyes coming up to the stage, calling out "Pavel Vaslyevich," reaching out to touch him. [23][24][25] Having made that public gesture in behalf of Feffer and other victims of Stalin's policies-all that could have been done without directly threatening Feffers's life-Robeson clammed up on returning to the United States."[26]

Robeson's spontaneous translation of the Yiddish text of the *song of the Warsaw Ghetto Uprising* into Russian and his personal tribute to Mikhoels and Feffer were censored from the tapes of the 1949 broadcast. .^{[21][27]}

Silence on Stalin

Upon returning to the United States, he denied any persecution of Jews or other political prisoners, stating: "I met Jewish people all over the place... I heard no word about it." [17]

According to Joshua Rubenstein's book, *Stalin's Secret Pogrom*, Robeson also justified his silence on the grounds that any public criticism of the USSR would reinforce the authority of anti-Soviet elements in the United States which, he believed, wanted a preemptive war against the Soviet Union. A large number of Robeson biographers, including Martin Duberman, Philip S Foner, Marie Seton, Paul Robeson Jr., and Lloyd Brown, also concur with Robeson's own words, that he felt that criticism of the Soviet Union by someone of his immense international popularity would only serve to shore up reactionary elements in the U.S., the same elements that had lifted his passport, blocked anti-lynching legislation, and maintained a racial climate in the United States that also allowed Jim Crow, impoverished living conditions for all races and a white supremacist domination of the US government to continue. Robeson is on record many times as stating that he felt the existence of a major socialist power like the USSR was a bulwark against Western European capitalist domination of Africa, Asia and the Caribbean.

Jackie Robinson's testimony to HUAC (April 1949)

At the World Congress of Partisans for Peace held in Paris on April 20, 1949, Robeson made the widely publicized controversial comments that American blacks would not support the <u>United States</u> in a potential post-World War II war with the Soviet Union. The subsequent controversy caused the <u>House Committee on Un-American Activities</u> (HUAC) to investigate Robeson. HUAC sought the testimony of the African American baseball star <u>Jackie Robinson</u> on the subject. In July 1949, Robinson eventually agreed to testify before HUAC, fearing that declining to do so might negatively and permanently damage his career. His testimony was a major media event, with Robinson's carefully worded statement appearing on the front page of *The New York Times* the following day.

Views on Stalin

Robeson is often criticized for continuing to support the Soviet Union after he became aware (according to his son Paul Robeson, Jr.) of state sponsored intimidation and murder of Jews. Robeson would state continually in speeches and essays that having experienced firsthand for himself during the 1930s a climate in Russia that he perceived as free from racial prejudice, he saw no western country or superpower actively attempt any comparable commitment. Robeson thus refused any pressure to publicly censure the Soviet experiment. He also stated that, the existence of the USSR was the guarantee of political balance in the world. During a 1949 address to the National Council of American-Soviet Friendship, he said: [29]

Yes, all Africa remembers that it was Litvinov who stood alone beside Haile Selassie in Geneva, when Mussolini's sons flew with the blessings of the Pope to drop bombs on Ethiopian women and children. Africa remembers that it was the Soviet Union which fought the attempts of the Smuts to annex Southwest Africa to the slave reservation of the Union of South Africa... if the peoples of the Congo refuse to mine the uranium for the atom bombs made in Jim Crow factories in the United States; if all these peoples demand an end to floggings, an end to the farce of 'trusteeship' in the former Italian colonies.... The Soviet Union is the friend of the African and the West Indian peoples." [30]

Stalin Peace Prize and Stalin eulogy (1952–1953)

In 1952, Robeson was awarded the <u>Stalin Peace Prize</u>. In April 1953, shortly after Joseph Stalin's death he wrote a eulogy entitled *To You Beloved Comrade*, in the *New World Review*, in which he praised Stalin's "deep humanity," "wise understanding," and dedication to peaceful co-existence with all peoples of the world calling him "wise and good." He also praised Stalin as a man that the world was fortunate to have for daily guidance: "Through his [Stalin's] deep humanity, by his wise understanding, he leaves us a rich and monumental heritage." [32]

Robeson's comments of praise were made prior to Nikita Khrushchev's 1956 "Secret Speech" at the 20th Congress of the Communist Party of the Soviet Union regarding Stalin's purges. Though Robeson would continue to praise the USSR throughout his life, he would neither publicly denounce nor praise Stalin personally following Khrushchev's 1956 revelations. [11] Many historians, Robeson scholars and advocates feel that his statements about Stalin and the Peace Prize itself are routinely used out of historical context to defame or disparage his legacy by his critics. [33] In turn, many critics and historians feel the eulogy and prize are solid proof of his being a "hard line Stalinist."

Robeson and House Un-American Activities Committee (1956)

Robeson's very vocal support of Communist countries and his outspoken political views, became a concern of the US government. Eventually he would have his passport lifted and spend eight years trying to win it back while being unwilling to sign an oath stating he was not a Communist. Robeson viewed signing such a statement and the existence of HUAC as a gross violation of every American's civil liberties.

In 1956, Robeson was called before the <u>House Un-American Activities Committee</u> (HUAC) after he refused to sign an affidavit affirming that he was not a Communist. In response to questions concerning his alleged Communist Party membership, Robeson reminded the Committee that the Communist Party was a legal party and invited its members to join him in the voting booth before he invoked the <u>Fifth Amendment</u> and refused to respond. Robeson lambasted Committee members on <u>civil rights</u> issues concerning African Americans. When one senator asked him why he hadn't remained in the Soviet Union, he replied: "Because my father was a slave, and my people died to build this country, and I am going to stay here, and have a part of it just like you. And no fascist-minded people will drive me from it. Is that clear? I am for peace with the Soviet Union, and I am not for peace with China, and I am not for peace or friendship with the Fascist Franco, and I am not for peace with Fascist Nazi Germans. I am for peace with decent people."

Shortly thereafter he stated: "I am here because I am opposing the neo-fascist cause, which I see arising in these committees." (Audio recording of Paul Robeson's testimony before the House Un-American Activities Committee, June 12, 1956) At one point he remarked, "you are the nonpatriots, and you are the un-Americans, and you ought to be ashamed of yourselves". [34] In making these statements, he was the only major figure to testify before HUAC who directly attacked the committee and subsequently cited for contempt of congress. The charges were later dismissed.

Robeson was also cross-examined over his opinions on Stalin and if he was no longer supporting Stalin's regime or the Soviet Union. [28] In his testimony to HUAC he stated that: "I have told you, mister, that I would not discuss anything with the people who have murdered sixty million of my

people, and I will not discuss Stalin with you." He later remarked that "I will discuss Stalin when I may be among the Russian people some day, singing for them, I will discuss it there. It is their problem." Asked if he had praised Stalin during his previous trip to the Soviet Union, Robeson replied, "I do not know." When asked outright if he had changed his mind about Stalin, he implored:

Whatever has happened to Stalin, gentlemen, is a question for the Soviet Union, and I would not argue with a representative of the people who, in building America, wasted sixty to a hundred million lives of my people, black people drawn from Africa on the plantations. You are responsible, and your forebears, for sixty million to one hundred million black people dying in the slave ships and on the plantations, and don't ask me about anybody, please. [35]

Possible challenge to Soviet policies

Robert Robinson, an African American toolmaker who had lived in the USSR since 1930 and who had met Robeson in the 1940s, wrote in his autobiography *Black on Red: My 44 Years Inside the Soviet Union*, as well as stated in a 1980s interview with Martin Duberman, that he recalled rumors during the early 1960s that Robeson had an "unpleasant confrontation" with Khrushchev about antisemitism. Historian Duberman found inconsistencies with Robinson's dates but posits that it involves an issue of "crucial if clouded importance" that may shed light on Robeson's subsequent suicide attempt in Moscow, March 1961 as well as his panic attack while passing the Soviet Embassy in London, September 1961 prior to his lengthy hospitalization at the Priory for mental illness. [36]

Robinson had long since decided that Robeson was oblivious to the harsh Soviet realities, as he had refused Robinson's multiple appeals for assistance at getting out of the U.S.S.R. Robinson still recorded his astonishment when during the ball bearing factory concert (Robinson gives the date as 1961, but photographic evidence given by Duberman points to 1960), Robeson included "a mournful song out of the Jewish tradition, that decried their persecution through the centuries." Singing in Yiddish, with such a "cry in his voice", such a seeming "pleas to end the beating, berating and killing of Jews", that he concluded that Robeson had made a decisive choice to protest Soviet antisemitism. Robinson also recalls conversing with Robeson's interpreter and learning that he had been singing the Jewish songs at other appearances including major concert venues.

Robinson maintained having heard a rumor from five different people, none of whom knew each other and all of whom were "officials within the party structure". Robeson purportedly asked Khrushchev if stories in the Western press about the purges of Jews and widespread institutionalized antisemitism were true. [38] And Khrushchev had purportedly blown up at him, accusing Robeson of trying to meddle in party affairs. Robinson also claimed to "have never heard his records again broadcast regularly" on radio Moscow and "never read another word about him in the press." [37] Robeson would never return to the Soviet Union after his aforementioned five month hospitalization.

Later views of communism (1960s)

During the early days of his retirement and even after his death, rumors about his health and its connections to his supposed disillusionment with the USSR continued to persist. There were even false claims that he was living in "self-imposed exile in the Soviet Union" by $\underline{\textit{The New York Times}}$ who called him "the disillusioned native son". [39]

At no time during his retirement (or his life) is Paul Robeson on record of mentioning any unhappiness or regrets about his beliefs in socialism or the Soviet Union nor did he ever express any disappointment in its leaders including Vladimir Lenin and Joseph Stalin. Moreover, only a few sources out of hundreds interviewed and researched by two of his biographers Martin Duberman and Lloyd Brown agreed with the claims made in the mainstream media of Robeson's supposed embitterment over the USSR. [40]

Anna Louise Strong, the radical travel journalist, remarked in 1965 that she had always felt that "Paul's trouble had a deep psychosomatic cause in the shock and trauma he suffered from the Sino-Soviet split [...] Paul had a very deep love and devotion to both the USSR and for China's revolution and [...] consequently the split must have been especially hard for him, since his devotions have always been through passionate allegiance rather than through theory". [41]

References

- 1. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 189.
- 2. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 185.
- 3. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 184
- Vern Smith (January 15, 1935). ""I Am at Home," Says Robeson at Reception in Soviet Union" (ht tp://www.revolutionarydemocracy.org/rdv4n2/ussrpr.htm). *Daily Worker*. Retrieved January 30, 2009.
- 5. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 187.
- 6. name= "David Levering Lewis, *Artist and Citizen: Paul Robeson the USSR*, Rutgers University Press, New Jersey, 1999.
- 7. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 1207.
- 8. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 232.
- 9. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 307.
- 10. Duberman, pp. 307-308
- 11. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pgs 301, 318, 440.
- 12. Bay Area Paul Robeson Centennial Committee, *Paul Robeson Chronology (Part 5) (http://bayare arobeson.org/Chronology_5.htm) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20110525230149/http://www.bayarearobeson.org/Chronology_5.htm) 2011-05-25 at the Wayback Machine.*
- 13. Bay Area Paul Robeson Centennial Committee, Paul Robeson Chronology (Part 6) (http://bayare arobeson.org/Chronology_6.htm) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20110223094534/http://bayarearobeson.org/Chronology_6.htm) 2011-02-23 at the Wayback Machine.
- 14. Stewart, pg. 225.
- 15. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 352-354 and notes 690
- 16. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 352-354.
- 17. Barry Finger (1998). "Paul Robeson: A Flawed Martyr" (https://web.archive.org/web/20080516225 923/http://www.wpunj.edu/newpol/issue25/finger25.htm). New Politics. 7 (1). Archived from the original (http://www.wpunj.edu/newpol/issue25/finger25.htm) on May 16, 2008.
- 18. Mikhoels-Vovsi, Natalya. Vremya i mwi, Tel-Aviv 1976, pg 190
- 19. Shostakovich, Dimitri. *Testimony*, Harper Row 1979 pgs 188-189
- 20. Markish, Esther. The Living Journey, 1978.
- 21. Robeson, Paul Robeson, Jr. 2008, *The undiscovered Paul Robeson: quest for freedom, 1939-1976* pg 152, into The Eye of the Storm
- 22. Lewis, David Levering 1998, *Paul Robeson:Artist and Citizen* pg 226, Paul Robeson and The U.S.S.R

- 23. "paul robeson Russian Concert in 1949 exclusively at panartist.com" (https://web.archive.org/web/20071020025755/http://www.panartist.com/paulrobeson.htm). Archived from the original (http://www.panartist.com/paulrobeson.htm) on 2007-10-20.
- 24. Paul Robeson Live Concert in Moscow at Tchaikovsky Hall (http://claudet.club.fr/GhettosCamps/Disques/Mitsui.html) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20081013042251/http://claudet.club.fr/GhettosCamps/Disques/Mitsui.html) 2008-10-13 at the Wayback Machine
- 25. **Kurjer Codzienny**, June 10, 1949 (Polish Newspaper)[Translation:"...he was given an unusually cordial reception after his commenting...the song of the Warsaw ghetto was enthusiastically received by the audience."]
- 26. ="Duberman, Martin 1989, pg 353"
- 27. "The Paris Speech and After" Duberman, Martin Paul Robeson, 1989, 352-353
- 28. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pgs 354
- 29. Foner, Phillip. Paul Robeson Speaks: The Negro and The Soviet Union, 1978, pgs 237
- 30. Foner, Phillip. Paul Robeson Speaks: The Negro and The Soviet Union, 1978, pgs 238
- 31. To You Beloved Comrade (http://www.northstarcompass.org/nsc9804/robeson.htm)
- 32. New World Review, April, 1953
- 33. Martin Duberman Writing Robeson (http://www.hartford-hwp.com/archives/45a/297.html)
- 34. Duberman, pp. 439-442
- 35. http://historymatters.gmu.edu/d/6440/"You Are the Un-Americans, and You Ought to be Ashamed of Yourselves": Paul Robeson Appears Before HUACretrieved March 2nd 2009
- 36. Duberman, Martin 1989, notes for pg 735-736"
- 37. Robinson, Robert "Black on Red: My 44 Years Inside the Soviet Union [Acropolis 1988]pp.318-319
- 38. name="Duberman, Martin 1989, notes for pg 735-736"
- 39. Duberman, Martin. *Paul Robeson*, 1989, Attempted Renewal.
- 40. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, chapters "Broken Health" and "Attempted Renewal".
- 41. Duberman, Martin. Paul Robeson, 1989, pg 541.

Retrieved from "https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Political views of Paul Robeson&oldid=1039608138"

This page was last edited on 19 August 2021, at 17:46 (UTC).

Text is available under the Creative Commons Attribution-ShareAlike License; additional terms may apply. By using this site, you agree to the Terms of Use and Privacy Policy. Wikipedia® is a registered trademark of the Wikimedia Foundation, Inc., a non-profit organization.



[Frederick Vanderbilt Field. (Accessed Aug. 27, 2021). Biography. Wikipedia.]

Frederick Vanderbilt Field

Frederick Vanderbilt Field (April 13, 1905 – February 1, 2000) was an American leftist political activist, political writer and a great-great-grandson of railroad tycoon Cornelius "Commodore" Vanderbilt, disinherited by his wealthy relatives for his radical political views. Field became a specialist on Asia and was a prime staff member and supporter of the Institute of Pacific Relations. He also supported Henry Wallace's Progressive Party and so many openly Communist organizations that he was accused of being a member of the Communist Party. [1] He was a top target of the American government during the peak of 1950s McCarthyism. Field denied ever having been a party member but admitted in his memoirs, "I suppose I was what the Party called a 'member at large." [2][1]

Contents

Early years

Institute of Pacific Relations and radical politics

American Peace Mobilization

Anti-colonialism and Pan-Africanism

Civil rights activities

Tydings Committee

Mexican exile

Personal life and death

Works

Footnotes

Further reading

External links

Frederick Vanderbilt Field		
Born	April 13, 1905	
Died	February 1, 2000 (aged 94) Minneapolis, Minnesota	
Nationality	American	
Education	Hotchkiss School (1923) ^[1] Harvard University (1927) London School of Economics	
Spouse(s)	Elizabeth Brown (1st), Edith Chamberlain Hunter (2nd), Anita Cohen Boyer (3rd), Nieves Orozco (4th)	
Parent(s)	William Osgood Field Lila Vanderbilt Sloane	
Relatives	Cornelius Vanderbilt (great-great- grandfather) Samuel Osgood (ancestor) Cyrus Field (ancestor)	

Early years

Field was born on April 13, 1905, a scion of the wealthy Vanderbilt family and a descendant of Corneilus Vanderbilt. A 1923 graduate of the private Hotchkiss School, Field went on to attend Harvard University, where he participated in undergraduate life as chief editor of *The Harvard Crimson* and a member of the Hasty Pudding Club. Graduating in 1927, Field spent a year at the London School of Economics, where he was exposed to the ideas of Harold Laski, the Fabian socialist political theorist, economist, and writer. First coming into politics as a supporter of the Democratic Party after returning to the United States, he was disillusioned by the Democrats' unwillingness to

take a more uncompromising position toward social reform and endorsed Norman Thomas, the Socialist presidential candidate in 1928 and became a member of the Socialist Party. Having attracted significant attention as an unlikely endorsement for Norman Thomas, Field was cut off without a penny by Frederick William Vanderbilt, his great-uncle, from whom he had been promised an estimated fortune of more than \$70 million. [1]

Institute of Pacific Relations and radical politics

Upon Field's return from England in 1928, Edward Clark Carter of the Institute of Pacific Relations (IPR) introduced him to Y.C. James Yen, who was then in the United States to raise money for his Chinese Mass Education Movement. After touring the country as Yen's personal assistant, Field joined the IPR, a group that brought together government and non-governmental elites to study problems of the Pacific rim nations, as an assistant to Carter. Field "took no pay; he was, in fact, one of the institute's most generous contributors." He published several reference works on the Asian economy and organized conferences and publications.

As he grew older, his politics became more radical. He described the IPR as "a bourgeois research-educational organization" funded by the Rockefeller and Carnegie foundations and some of the biggest corporations in the US, which he claimed subsidized his publication of proposals "as anticapitalistic as the articles he wrote for <u>The New Masses</u> and <u>The Daily Worker</u>." New Masses was identified by one scholar as the "semi-official spokesman of Communist letters" He was also Executive Vice-President of the Council for Pan American Democracy, which <u>John Dewey's</u> Committee for Cultural Freedom alleged in 1940 was under "outright communist control" and Provisional secretary of the Board of Directors for the <u>Jefferson School of Social Science</u>, associated with the Communist Party.

He wrote a memo cautioning <u>Owen Lattimore</u>, editor of the IPR quarterly <u>Pacific Affairs</u>, with regard to a certain article that "the <u>analysis</u> is a straight <u>Marxist</u> one and... should not be altered." He donated money and time to Communist causes in the 1930s, 1940s and 1950s, 195 and during the war, he generously donated money to organizations close to the Soviet Union. 195

In his autobiography, Field confesses that during this period he "uncritically accepted" Soviet accounts of their political purges and that was "taken in." "Stalin was infallible," he recalled. "[A]ll my Communist surroundings told me so. So was [American Communist Party Secretary Earl] Browder, although on a lower level of sanctity, and so were the other CP [Communist Party] leaders."

At a time when other erstwhile loyal friends of the Soviet Union were becoming disillusioned by Stalin's <u>Great Purge</u>, Field defended the <u>Moscow Trials</u> "because Comrade Stalin says so, we have to believe the trials are just." [2]

Since the IPR aimed to be nonpartisan and, in theory, still attempted to include even the Japanese point of view, he collaborated with his friend <u>Philip Jaffe</u> to set up the journal <u>Amerasia</u> in 1937 as a vehicle for criticism of Japanese attacks in China. Jaffe later pleaded guilty to "conspiracy to embezzle, steal and purloin" government property after <u>Office of Strategic Services</u> and FBI investigators found hundreds of government documents, many labeled "secret," "top secret," or "confidential," in the magazine's offices. [10]

In 1941, he left his position at the IPR but served as a trustee until 1947. Field attended the 1945 United Nations founding conference in San Francisco as an IPR representative, and also as a writer for the *Daily Worker*. 12]

American Peace Mobilization

In 1940, Field became executive secretary of the American Peace Mobilization (APM), a position for which he had been recruited by <u>Earl Browder</u> himself. "Some time before the APM was formally organized," wrote Field, "Earl Browder asked me if I would accept the executive secretaryship if it were offered me." At APM, Field emerged as a committed pacifist, demanding that the United States stay out of the war in Europe, at least while the <u>Hitler-Stalin pact</u> lasted. Is reasoning, as he would explain in his autobiography, was that "the European war in those early stages was one between rival imperialists, the British Empire and the Nazi Reich." By summer of the following year, however, Field came to a complete turnaround: on June 20, 1941, in his capacity as executive secretary, he suddenly called off the organization's "peace picketing" of the White House himself to demand immediate war on Germany placed picketing of the White House in the Soviet Union.

According to the McCarran Committee's *IPR Report*, Lattimore, along with President Franklin D. Roosevelt's Administrative Assistant Lauchlin Currie (identified in the Venona decrypts as the Soviets' White House source codenamed "Page"), tried in 1942 to get Field a commission in military intelligence, but, unlike Duncan Lee (Venona code name "Koch"), Maurice Halperin ("Hare"), Julius Joseph ("Cautious"), Carl Marzani, Franz Neumann ("Ruff"), Helen Tenney ("Muse"), and Donald Wheeler ("Izra"), all of whom got into the OSS, Field was rejected as a security risk.

In 1944, dissident IPR member Alfred Kohlberg submitted to IPR Secretary General Edward C. Carter an 88-page analysis alleging that the institute had been infiltrated by pro-Communist elements. Among other things, Kohlberg alleged that Field was a member of the National Committee of the Communist Party. [20] In 1945, former Soviet spy Elizabeth Bentley told FBI investigators that she had attended a conference in Field's home earlier that year. [21] Also present, she alleged, were Browder, John Hazard Reynolds, head of the United States Service and Shipping Corporation (a Comintern front organization for Soviet espionage activities) [22] and "Ray" Elson (Identified in the "Gorsky memo" under the cover name "Irma") [23]

In 1945 Field was one of the founding members of the <u>Committee for a Democratic Far Eastern</u> <u>Policy</u>, which tried to influence US policy to stop supporting the <u>Kuomintang</u> government in China, and after 1949 to recognize the People's Republic of China. [24]

On April 22, 1948, <u>Louis Budenz</u>, former managing editor of the *Daily Worker*, advised FBI investigators, "Field is a Communist Party member." In 1949, Field identified himself in *Political Affairs* as an "American Communist."

Anti-colonialism and Pan-Africanism

Vanderbilt Field was the main donor to the <u>Council on African Affairs</u>, an <u>anti-colonialist</u> and <u>Pan-</u>African organization. [27]

Civil rights activities

Field took an active role in the operation of the <u>Civil Rights Congress</u>, a leftist group of civil rights advocates formed from the merger of the <u>International Labor Defense</u> (ILD), the <u>National Negro Congress</u>, and the <u>National Federation for Constitutional Liberties</u> in <u>Detroit</u> in 1946. The organization concentrated on legal action and political protest, notably publicizing the 1955 lynching

of 14-year-old boy Emmett Till and publishing the 1951 document We Charge Genocide. It also helped to pioneer many of the tactics that would be employed by later civil rights workers. [1][28] Field simultaneously acted as both secretary and trustee of the Civil Rights Congress bail fund. [1]

Tydings Committee

In 1950, Budenz testified before the <u>Tydings Committee</u> to personal knowledge that Field was a Soviet espionage agent. [29] Questioned, Field refused to answer on grounds of potential self-incrimination. [30] The following year, former Soviet spy <u>Whittaker Chambers</u> testified before the <u>McCarran Committee</u> that <u>NKVD</u> "handler" <u>J. Peters</u> told him, in 1937, that Field was a member of the Communist underground. [31] Herbert Romerstein, former head of the office to Counter Soviet Disinformation at the <u>United States Information Agency</u>, and the late <u>Eric Breindel</u> placed Field in the GRU *apparat*, alleging that he "was an agent of Soviet military intelligence." [32]

Yet, writers <u>Kai Bird</u> and <u>Svetlana Chervonnaya</u>, examining the archives in an article of <u>The American</u> <u>Scholar</u>, disagree:

Documents show that he was in contact with various Soviet representatives in the United States beginning in early 1935. Some of these interactions may be described as 'active measures' on behalf of the Soviet Union. Still, what we know does not prove that Field was a full-blown Soviet agent. [33]

As secretary of the Civil Rights Congress bail fund, Field refused to reveal who had put up bond for eight Communist Party officials, who had jumped bail and disappeared after being convicted by the Truman administration Department of Justice for violations of the Smith Act. Convicted of contempt of court since he would not provide the names of any of his Communist friends, Field served two months of a 90-day sentence in federal prison at Ashland, Kentucky, in 1951. [1]

Mexican exile

Field at one point moved with his third wife to Mexico in a "self-imposed exile", but he kept up many of his associations. A 1962 visit by Marilyn Monroe was monitored by the FBI out of concern over the actress's connections to Communism, and a "mutual infatuation" between her and Field concerned both "some in her inner circle, including her therapist", according to investigators' files. There was "dismay among her entourage and also among the (American Communist Group in Mexico)." Those file notations were kept redacted until a FOIA request in 2012. [34]

Personal life and death

Field married four times. His first wife was a Elizabeth ("Betty") G. Brown^[35] of Duluth, Minnesota, who was a socialist. His second wife, Edith Chamberlain Hunter, supported the Council on African Affairs headed by Max Yergan. His third wife was Anita Cohen Boyer, ex-wife of Raymond Boyer, convicted in a Canadian spy case. His fourth wife was Nieves Orozco, a former model of Diego Rivera. [2][1][37]

Field died age 94 on February 1, 2000, at the Walker Methodist Health Center in Minneapolis, where he had been living since his return from Mexico in 1983. [1]

Works

In his 1983 memoir, Field did not hesitate to use highly biased language against his accusers. He accused <u>Louis F. Budenz</u> of seeking to injure him. He called <u>Whittaker Chambers</u> "a neurotic psychopath." He devoted a whole chapter to "The Lattimore Case," which involved him. He also acknowledged IPR's Edward Clark Carter, who "gave me every opportunity to develop whatever administrative and research abilities I might have." [2]

- American Participation in the China Consortiums (Pub. for the American Council, Institute of Pacific Relations by the University of Chicago Press, 1931)
- Economic Handbook of the Pacific Area (Doubleday, 1934)
- China's Capacity for Resistance (American Council, Institute of Pacific Relations, 1937)
- China's Greatest Crisis (New Century Publishers, 1945)
- Thoughts on the Meaning and Use of Pre-Hispanic Mexican Sellos (Dumbarton Oaks, Trustees for Harvard University, 1967)
- Field, Frederick V. (1983). From Right to Left (https://books.google.com/books?id=g9cPAQAAMA AJ). Brooklyn: Lawrence Hill. p. 321. ISBN 9780882081625. Retrieved 29 August 2020.

Footnotes

- Nemy, Enid (February 7, 2000). "Frederick Vanderbilt Field, Wealthy Leftist, Dies at 94" (https://www.nytimes.com/2000/02/07/us/frederick-vanderbilt-field-wealthy-leftist-dies-at-94.html). New York Times. Retrieved 2008-05-11. "Frederick Vanderbilt Field, who supported Communist causes in the 1930s, 1940s and 1950s and was once described as the Reds' pet blueblood, died Feb. 1 at the Walker Methodist Health Center in Minneapolis."
- 2. Field, Frederick V. (1983). From Right to Left (https://books.google.com/books?id=g9cPAQAAMA AJ). Brooklyn: Lawrence Hill. pp. 22 (1st wife Elizabeth), 82–84 (Carter), 85 (1st wife "Betty"), 95 (1st wife Elizabeth), 102 (1st wife "Betty"), 139 (1st wife "Betty" 2nd wife Edith), 169 (membership), 172–173 (Purge), 186 (offer), 191 (Empire, Reich), 210 (2nd wife Edith), 211 (3rd wife Anita), 214 (Budenz injure), 216 (Budenz), 217 (Chambers), 258–259 (3rd wife Anita), 266 (Budenz), 267 (Chambers psychopath), 269 (Chambers), 279 (3rd wife Nieves), 304 (3rd wife Nieves). ISBN 9780882081625. Retrieved 29 August 2020.
- 3. "Life of an Angel" (https://web.archive.org/web/20080103153216/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,811650,00.html). Time. January 9, 1950. Archived from the original (http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,811650,00.html) on January 3, 2008. Retrieved 2008-05-11. "Frederick Vanderbilt Field was news the day he was born, Apr. 15, 1905. He was a great-great grandson of Railroad Builder Cornelius Vanderbilt, marked by destiny and carefully drawn wills to be a man of wealth and solid respectability."
- 4. Ibid. (https://query.nytimes.com/gst/fullpage.html?res=9903E0DB173BF935A25753C1A96594826 0)*
- James Burkhart Gilbert, Writers and Partisans: A History of Literary Radicalism in America (https://books.google.com/books?id=xrSLRSqKgxUC&pg=PA88&sig=ibruDZ1tFl85qBg4QQK6abd8T90#PPA106,M1) (New York: Columbia University Press, 1992) ISBN 0-231-08254-1, p. 106
- 6. Eugene Lyons, *The Red Decade: The Stalinist Penetration of America* (Indianapolis: The Bobbs Merill Company, 1941), p. 376
- 7. Guide to the Jefferson School of Social Science (http://dlib.nyu.edu/eadapp/transform?source=tamwag/jefferson.xml&style=tamwag/tamwag.xsl&part=body)
- 8. "Absent-Minded Professor? (https://web.archive.org/web/20071219164351/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,822192-1,00.html)" *Time*, March 10, 1952

- 9. Bird and Chervonnaya, Op. cit. (http://www.theamericanscholar.org/su07/ales-bird.html) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20071002134104/http://www.theamericanscholar.org/su07/ales-bird.html) 2007-10-02 at the Wayback Machine
- Harvey Klehr and Ronald Radosh, The Amerasia Spy Case: Prelude to McCarthyism (Chapel Hill: The University of North Carolina Press, 1996) ISBN 0-8078-2245-0, p. 38–39, 131.
- 11. Subcommittee to Investigate the Administration of the Internal Security Act and Other Security Laws, Senate Committee on the Judiciary, *Interlocking Subversion in Government Departments*, (Washington: U S Government Printing Office, 1954), pp. 8–10
- 12. FBI Report: Southern California Division, American Council, Institute of Pacific Relations, June 13, 1947, p. 3 (http://education-research.org/PDFs/splitfiles/splitprocessed/IPR03_Folder/IPR03_pag e4.pdf) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20110726014857/http://education-research.org/PDF s/splitfiles/splitprocessed/IPR03_Folder/IPR03_page4.pdf) July 26, 2011, at the Wayback Machine (FBI file: Institute of Pacific Relations, Section 3, PDF p. 4)
- 13. "Picketers Picketed," *Time*, June 2, 1941 (https://web.archive.org/web/20081206024705/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,790078,00.html)
- 14. "White House Pickets Stop At 1,029 Hours," Washington Post, June 22, 1941
- 15. "Purely for Peace," *Time*, July 14, 1941 (https://web.archive.org/web/20070930064751/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,849366,00.html)
- 16. Robert J. Hanyok, "Eavesdropping on Hell: Historical Guide to Western Communications Intelligence and the Holocaust, 1939–1945" (https://www.nsa.gov/about/cryptologic-heritage/historical-figures-publications/publications/wwii/assets/files/eavesdropping.pdf) (Washington, DC: Center for Cryptologic History, National Security Agency, 2005, 2nd Ed.), p. 119 (PDF page 124)
- M. Stanton Evans, "McCarthyism: Waging the Cold War in America (http://www.humanevents.com/article.php?id=455)
 Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20071012170301/http://www.humanevents.com/article.php?id=455)
 2007-10-12 at the Wayback Machine," Human Events, May 30, 1997
- 18. Lee, Halperin and Joseph are identified in Venona decrypt 880 KGB New York to Moscow, June 8, 1943, p. 1 (http://www.nsa.gov/venona/releases/08_Jun_1943_m7_p1.gif) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20070705100533/http://www.nsa.gov/venona/releases/08_Jun_1943_m7_p1.gif) July 5, 2007, at the Wayback Machine
- "Alexander Vassiliev's Own Translation of his Notes on Anatoly Gorsky's December 1948 Memo on Compromised American Sources and Networks (http://www.johnearlhaynes.org/page53.html) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20070927223238/http://www.johnearlhaynes.org/page53.html) 2007-09-27 at the Wayback Machine," October 2005
- 20. FBI Report: Institute of Pacific Relations, Internal Security–C, July 22, 1949, p. 9 (IPR file, Section 4 (http://Ultra-Secret.info/PDFs/IPR04.pdf), PDF p. 11)
- 21. FBI Report: <u>Underground Soviet Espionage Organization (NKVD) in Agencies of the United States Government (http://Ultra-Secret.info/PDFs/splitfiles/splitprocessed/Silvermaster082_Folder/Silvermaster082_page242.pdf)</u>, October 21, 1946 (Silvermaster file, Vol. 82), p. 221
- 22. Lauren Kessler, Clever Girl: Elizabeth Bentley, the Spy Who Ushered in the McCarthy Era (New York: HarperCollins, 2003) ISBN 0-06-095973-8, p. 77
- 23. Alexander Vassiliev, *Op. cit.* (http://www.johnearlhaynes.org/page53.html) Archived (https://web.archive.org/web/20070927223238/http://www.johnearlhaynes.org/page53.html) 2007-09-27 at the Wayback Machine
- 24. Garner, Karen (2009-06-01), *Precious Fire: Maud Russell and the Chinese Revolution* (https://books.google.com/books?id=VW67uwsVuh8C&pg=PA207), Univ of Massachusetts Press, <u>ISBN</u> 978-1-55849-754-2, retrieved 2016-03-14
- 25. FBI Report: Institute of Pacific Relations, Internal Security–C, p.5 (FBI file: Institute of Pacific Relations, Section 4 (http://Ultra-Secret.info/PDFs/IPR04.pdf), PDF p. 7)

- 26. Edward M. Collins, *Myth, Manifesto, Meltdown: Communist Strategy, 1848–1991 (https://books.google.com/books?id=YRa3Y2m_wrwC&pg=PA55&dq=joseph+barnes+ipr&sig=rhLcLDGQC4EFF1N3AArJQvvXRs4#PPA55,M1)* (Westport, Connecticut: Praeger/Greenwood, 1998), p. 55 (https://books.google.com/books?id=YRa3Y2m_wrwC&pg=PA55&dq=joseph+barnes+ipr&sig=rhLcLDGQC4EFF1N3AArJQvvXRs4#PPA55,M1) ISBN 0-275-95938-4
- 27. Nixon, Ron (2016). South Africa's Global Propaganda War. London, U.K.: Pluto Press. p. 10. ISBN 9780745399140. OCLC 959031269 (https://www.worldcat.org/oclc/959031269).
- 28. Salter, Daren. "Civil Rights Congress (1946–1956)". *African American History*. Quintard Taylor, Editor. *BlackPast.org: Remembered & Reclaimed*. http://www.blackpast.org/?q=aah/civil-rights-congress-1946-1956
- 29. "Of Cells & Onionskins (https://web.archive.org/web/20081206024711/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,812297,00.html)," *Time*, May 1, 1950
- 30. "In the Dark (https://web.archive.org/web/20081206024716/http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,812381,00.html)," *Time* May 8, 1950
- 31. Romerstein and Breindel, *Op. cit.* (https://books.google.com/books?id=mVpWH51F7toC&pg=PP1 &dq=the+venona+secrets&sig=YjqLS-EKVnkl7tqP2RGUa0fKiUk#PPA434,M1), p. 433
- 32. Ibid. (https://books.google.com/books?id=mVpWH51F7toC&pg=PP1&dq=the+venona+secrets&sig=YjqLS-EKVnkl7tqP2RGUa0fKiUk#PPA57,M1), p. 57
- Bird, Kai, and Svetlana Chervonnaya. "The Mystery of Ales". The American Scholar (Summer 2007). Internet Archive: Wayback Machine. Retrieved 3 April 2009. https://web.archive.org/web/20071002134104/http://www.theamericanscholar.org/su07/alesbird.html
- 34. Anthony McCartney (2012-12-28). <u>"FBI removes many redactions in Marilyn Monroe file" (https://news.yahoo.com/fbi-removes-many-redactions-marilyn-monroe-file-131729814.html)</u>. Associated Press. Retrieved 2012-12-28.
- 35. "F. Vanderbilt to Wed Miss Brown; Bride-to-Be a Duluth Girl" (https://www.nytimes.com/1929/03/1 9/archives/f-vanderbilt-field-to-wed-miss-brown-bridetobe-a-duluth-girllicense.html). New York Times. 19 March 1929. p. S42. Retrieved 29 August 2020.
- 36. "Mrs. Edith C. Hunter Becomes Bride Here; California Woman Is Married to Frederick Vanderbilt Field in Municipal Building" (https://www.nytimes.com/1937/02/19/archives/mrs-edith-c-hunter-becomes-bride-here-california-woman-is-married.html). New York Times. 19 February 1939. p. 16. Retrieved 29 August 2020.
- 37. Thompson, Craig (9 September 1950). "American Millionaire Communist" (https://www.saturdayeveningpost.com/flipbooks/issues/19500909/). Saturday Evening Post. Curtis Publishing: 28, 159–162, 161 (2nd wife), 162 (1st, 3rd wives). Retrieved 29 August 2020.

Further reading

- Frederick Vanderbilt Field, From Right to Left: An Autobiography (Westport, Conn.: L. Hill, 1983).
 vii, 321p.
- FBI Silvermaster File
- Whittaker Chambers, Witness (New York: Random House, 1952), 382

External links

Vassiliev, Alexander (2003), <u>Alexander Vassiliev's Notes on Anatoly Gorsky's December 1948</u>
 Memo on Compromised American Sources and Networks (http://www.wilsoncenter.org/event/alex
 ander-vassilievs-notebooks-and-the-documentation-soviet-intelligence-operations-the-unit-0),
 retrieved 2012-04-21

Retrieved from "https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Frederick Vanderbilt Field&oldid=1034652144"

This page was last edited on 21 July 2021, at 03:27 (UTC).

Text is available under the Creative Commons Attribution-ShareAlike License; additional terms may apply. By using this site, you agree to the Terms of Use and Privacy Policy. Wikipedia® is a registered trademark of the Wikimedia Foundation, Inc., a non-profit organization.

WikipediA

[Council on African Affairs. (Accessed Aug. 27, 2021). Overview. Wikipedia.]

Council on African Affairs

The **Council on African Affairs** (**CAA**), until 1941 called the **International Committee on African Affairs** (ICAA), was a volunteer organization founded in 1937 in the United States. It emerged as the leading voice of <u>anti-colonialism</u> and <u>Pan-Africanism</u> in the <u>United States</u> and internationally before <u>Cold War anti-communism</u> and <u>liberalism</u> created too much strife among members; the organization split in 1955. The split was also precipitated by co-founder <u>Max Yergan's</u> abandonment of left-wing politics; he advocated colonial rule in Africa.

Contents

Founding members

Goals and message

South Africa Uncensored (1951)

Reaction to United Nations Conference 1945

Cold War

References

External links

Founding members

<u>Paul Robeson</u> served as the CAA's chairman for most of its existence while <u>W. E. B. Du Bois</u> served as vice-chair and head of the Africa Aid Committee. Activist <u>Max Yergan</u>, who taught at the <u>City College of New York</u> (until 1941), was its first Executive Director. <u>Alphaeus Hunton Jr.</u> (1903–1970), an assistant professor in the English and Romance Languages department at <u>Howard University</u>, joined the CAA in 1943 as its Educational Director.

He was appointed as its Executive Director, after Yergan resigned. Hunton was also the editor of the CAA publication, $\underbrace{New\ Africa}_{1950s.}$ He was the primary force behind much of the CAA's activity and vision through the early $\underbrace{1950s.}^{[1][2]}$

Other pioneer members of the ICAA were Raymond Leslie Buell and Ralph J. Bunche. The CAA, from its beginning in 1941, received the support of mainstream activists and liberal intellectuals such as anthropologist Franz Boas, historian E. Franklin Frazier, record producer John H. Hammond, Mary McLeod Bethune (from the National Youth Administration) and Rayford Logan. [1][3]

The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) surveilled CAA's founding members as early as 1942. [4]

The CAA's main donor was Frederick Vanderbilt Field. [5]

Goals and message

The Council on African Affairs articulated and promoted a fundamental connection between the struggle of African Americans and the destiny of colonized peoples in Africa, Asia and elsewhere in the world. Among a host of other campaigns, it lobbied the federal government and the United Nations and lent material support on behalf of Indian independence, striking trade unionists in Nigeria, and African famine relief. It publicized the connections between these campaigns and its larger critique of colonialism and capitalism via its monthly bulletin New Africa. The CAA's most significant work took place in relation to South Africa. It supported striking black miners and helped direct worldwide attention to the African National Congress's struggle against the Union of South Africa government and its policy of imposing racial apartheid.

South Africa Uncensored (1951)

In 1951, the Council produced a half-hour agitprop documentary film about apartheid in South Africa, narrated by Paul Robeson and edited by Hortense Beveridge. The only-known copy of the film, *South Africa Uncensored*, is part of the Pearl Bowser Collection (2012.79.1.5.1a) was preserved by the Smithsonian's National Museum of African American History and Culture (available for stream via museum website).

Reaction to United Nations Conference 1945

Members of the CAA were hopeful that following <u>World War II</u>, when Western powers adopted new resolutions on the issue of <u>colonialism</u>, that they would encourage <u>Third World</u> independence under the trusteeship of the United Nations. To the CAA's dismay, the <u>United States</u> introduced a series of proposals at the April–May 1945 conference that set no clear <u>limits</u> on the length of <u>colonialist</u> occupation and no motions toward allowing territorial possessions to move toward self-government.

Cold War

The Council on African Affairs advocated an internationalization of domestic civil rights, support for African liberation groups, and a non-aligned stance on the part of developing nations toward the Cold War superpowers. Combined with many CAA leaders' past and current associations with the Communist Party USA, this position became politically untenable by the early 1950s. The House Unamerican Activities Committee (HUAC) put great pressure on communist-affiliated organizations and activists. Liberal supporters abandoned the CAA and the federal government cracked down on its operations. In 1953, the CAA was charged with subversion under the McCarran Act. Its principal leaders, including Robeson, Du Bois, and Hunton, were subjected to harassment, indictments, and in the case of Hunton, six months' imprisonment.

Under the weight of internal disputes, government repression, and financial hardships, the Council on African Affairs disbanded in 1955. The United States government considered advocacy for the liberation of colonialist Africa as a "Communist cause" and therefore contrary to national interests during the Cold War. [9]

Following <u>Joseph Stalin</u>'s excesses in the Soviet Union of murdering and repressing millions, and other problems in the Communist world, Max Yergan had become disillusioned with Communism and spoke out against it. In 1952, he spoke against Communism on a visit to South Africa. In 1964, he praised aspects of the South African government's "separate development" plan under <u>apartheid</u>. In the last decade of life, he co-chaired the conservative American-African Affairs Association. [10]

References

- 1. Duberman, Martin, "The Apex of Fame", Paul Robeson, 1989, pp. 284–285.
- 2. Johanna Selles, "The Hunton Family: A Narrative of Faith through Generations" (http://old.religiou seducation.net/member/06_rea_papers/Selles_Johanna.pdf) (pdf), Religious Education.
- 3. Anthony, David Henry: *Max Yergan: Race Man, Internationalist, Cold Warrior*, NYU Press, 2006, p. 212.
- 4. Nixon, Ron (2016). South Africa's Global Propaganda War. London, U.K.: Pluto Press. p. 8. ISBN 9780745399140. OCLC 959031269 (https://www.worldcat.org/oclc/959031269).
- 5. Nixon, Ron (2016). South Africa's Global Propaganda War. London, U.K.: Pluto Press. p. 10. ISBN 9780745399140. OCLC 959031269 (https://www.worldcat.org/oclc/959031269).
- Forsberg, Walter (2019). Field, Allyson Nadia; Gordon, Marsha (eds.). "Red Star/Black Star: The Early Career of Film Editor Hortense "Tee" Beveridge, 1948-1968". Screening Race in American Nontheatrical Film. Durham, North Carolina: Duke University Press. pp. 119–121. ISBN 9781478004769.
- 7. "South Africa Uncensored" (https://nmaahc.si.edu/object/nmaahc_2012.79.1.5.1a#). Smithsonian National Museum of African American History & Culture. Retrieved 25 October 2020.
- 8. Duberman, Martin, "Postwar Politics", Paul Robeson, 1989, pp. 296–297.
- 9. Robeson, Susan, "The Pinnacle of Fame and Fortune", *A Pictorial Biography of Paul Robeson:* The Whole World in His Hands, 1981, p. 118.
- 10. "Max Yergan" (http://www.sahistory.org.za/people/max-yergan-0), South African History Online.

External links

 Watch (https://nmaahc.si.edu/object/nmaahc_2012.79.1.5.1a) the Council's documentary film South Africa Uncensored (1951) via NMAAHC (https://nmaahc.si.edu/object/nmaahc_2012.79.1. 5.1a).

Retrieved from "https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=Council on African Affairs&oldid=1001386966"

This page was last edited on 19 January 2021, at 13:19 (UTC).

Text is available under the Creative Commons Attribution-ShareAlike License; additional terms may apply. By using this site, you agree to the Terms of Use and Privacy Policy. Wikipedia® is a registered trademark of the Wikimedia Foundation, Inc., a non-profit organization.